
 
 

Park County Commission Meeting Minutes 
Week of August 15 – 19, 2011 

Park County, Montana 
 

 
 
August 15, 2011 
Review Daily Agenda/Correspondence and Current County Projects 
 
@8:33:49 a.m., Commissioner Malone called a meeting to order in the Commissioners 
Chambers.  Malone recessed the meeting until 1:30 p.m. when Commissioner Durgan is 
present.  @1:35:47 p.m., the meeting reopened.  Commissioners Durgan and Malone 
were present.  Also present were Raea Morris, administrative assistant; and Minutes 
Clerk John Mueller.  No public comment made. 
 
The meeting was scheduled to review the daily agenda and correspondence. 
 
Correspondence included: 
 

• Memo email re. MSU Sunshot initiative grant proposals 
• Memo email re. Airport Board appreciation barbecue 
• Memo letter re. West Boulder Road thank you 
• Memo document re. MACo worker’s compensation claim discount 
• Memo email re. Park County receipt of RAC funds for Main Boulder Road for 

$222,000; Willow Creek Road for $50,000; reopening and maintaining 
Yellowstone River Trail for $12,500; Big Creek Corral for $19,000; Education 
and Protection for Search and Rescue for $4,000; George Lake Trail Maintenance 
for $2,000 

• Memo email re. Inderland water rights issue 
• Memo document re. Miller Drive Bridge failure citizen request for reimbursement 
• Memo document re. Angel Line van sale 
• Memo document re. Park County/Livingston Library mill amount 
• Memo letter re. citizen water right issue 

 
Commissioner Durgan said Nelson Tree Care cannot remove a tree on Loves Lane as 
scheduled, but another contractor is available to remove the tree next week.  
 
Durgan said Citizen Ken Ballaugh requested more “Trail Closed” signs erected by the 
county for the now-closed Yellowstone River Trail.  
 
Commissioner Malone said Community Development Director Philip Fletcher scheduled 
a conference call with the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) at 10:30 
a.m. to be held as a public meeting to discuss the Fleshman Creek Restoration Project.   
 

Week of 8/15/11 Page 1 of 14 



@2:03:22 p.m., Durgan moved to adjourn the meeting.  Malone seconded the motion.  
The meeting adjourned. 
 
August 15, 2011 
Signing of a Contract with CTA Engineering for Engineering Services 
 
@9:32:42 a.m., Commissioner Durgan called a meeting to order in the Commissioners 
Chambers.  Commissioners Durgan and Malone were present.  Also present were 
Shannan Piccolo, civil deputy county attorney; Raea Morris, administrative assistant; 
Mark Westenskow, CTA Engineering; and Minutes Clerk John Mueller.  No public 
comment made. 
 
The meeting was scheduled to sign a contract with CTA Engineering for engineering 
services. 
 
Civil Deputy County Attorney Shannan Piccolo said the county awarded a contract to 
CTA Engineering last week based upon RFQs the Commission advertised for earlier in 
August.  Piccolo said the contract is for one year with an option for extension of up to 
two years.  
 
Commissioner Malone moved to sign the contract with CTA for engineering services for 
one year with the possibility of an extension.  Commissioner Durgan seconded the 
motion.  Motion passed.  
 
@9:39:44 a.m., Malone moved to adjourn the meeting.  Durgan seconded the motion.  
The meeting adjourned. 
 
August 15, 2011 
Review of Minutes for Week of August 8, 2011 
  
@1:06:55 p.m., Commissioner Malone called a meeting to order in the Commissioners 
Chambers.  Commissioners Durgan and Malone were present.  Also present was Minutes 
Clerk John Mueller.  No public comment made. 
 
The meeting was scheduled to review meeting minutes for the Week of August 8, 2011. 
 
Commissioner Durgan requested a revision to Page 10 of 16, noting the replacement of 
the term “iteration” with “reiteration.”  On Page 12 of 16; the fourth sentence should 
read, “He said the Commission will not give county citizens a fair shake if it does not go 
ahead with determining the final design and engineering cost estimate for the project.” 
 
Commissioner Durgan moved to approve the minutes as corrected.  Commissioner 
Malone seconded the motion.  Motion passed. 
 
@1:10:23 p.m., Durgan moved to adjourn the meeting.  Malone seconded the motion.  
The meeting adjourned. 

Week of 8/15/11 Page 2 of 14 



 
August 16, 2011 
Review Daily Agenda/Correspondence and Current County Projects 
 
@8:38:50 a.m., Commissioner Malone called a meeting to order in the Commissioners 
Chambers.  Malone recessed the meeting until 1:45 p.m. when Commissioner Durgan is 
present.  @1:52:41 p.m., the meeting reopened.  Commissioners Durgan and Malone 
were present.  Also present were Raea Morris, administrative assistant; and Minutes 
Clerk John Mueller.  No public comment made. 
 
The meeting was scheduled to review the daily agenda and correspondence. 
 
Correspondence included: 
 

• Memo email re. August 19 Solid Waste Board agenda 
• Memo email re. draft floodplain regulations press release 
• Memo document re. floodplain regulations executive summary 
• Memo email re. Aug 16 fair board agenda 
• Memo email re. Treasurer’s Office July cash account final balance sheet 
• Memo email re. Aug 17 RC&D Board meeting 
• Memo email re. citizen public information request inquiry 
• Memo email re. citizen road maintenance request 
• Memo email re. contracted engineering services projects 
• Memo email re. August 16 Web Committee meeting notice 
• Memo email re. personnel meeting excluding the HR Department  

 
@2:02:17 p.m., Durgan moved to adjourn the meeting.  Malone seconded the motion.  
The meeting adjourned. 
 
August 16, 2011 
County Road Updates 
 
@9:06:49 a.m., Commissioner Malone called a meeting to order in the Commissioners 
Chambers.  Commissioners Durgan and Malone were present.  Also present were Ed 
Hillman, road; Kevin Bales, Crazy Mountain Ranch; Barb Fletcher, citizen; and Minutes 
Clerk John Mueller. 
 
The meeting was scheduled to discuss county road issues. 
 
Citizen Barb Fletcher said she has a copy of a letter from Montana Fish, Wildlife and 
Parks dated August 1 to Road Supervisor Ed Hillman asking the county to make a 
decision by August 15 about a culvert put into a county road.  Fletcher said the culvert for 
Peterson Creek is on private property.  She said the culvert must be removed and replaced 
and asked if Park County filed a response to FWP.  Fletcher said she wants the county to 
write a letter to FWP to say the county is not responsible for the culvert, and Fletcher 
would like a copy of Stenberg’s liability insurance provided to the county.  The 

Week of 8/15/11 Page 3 of 14 



Commission said it will provide Fletcher with the requested information after she fills out 
a public information request. 
 
Kevin Bales of Crazy Mountain Ranch inquired about work on Rock Creek Road and 
said logistics of that work are being discussed by ranch and county attorneys. 
Commissioner Malone said the Commission will have the county’s contract engineer do a 
preliminary engineering study and estimate for the work.  He said Crazy Mountain Ranch 
will have to pay for the engineering estimate if it ends up declining the project after the 
report is complete.  
 
Hillman said the road crew is fixing a Newman Creek slide today and the mowing crew is 
mowing roads in the north end of the county.   
 
@9:27:44 a.m., Durgan moved to adjourn the meeting.  Malone seconded the motion.  
The meeting adjourned. 
 
August 16, 2011 
Department Head Meeting 
 
@9:35:05 a.m., Commissioner Durgan called a meeting to order in the Commissioners 
Chambers.  Present were Commissioners Durgan and Malone; Mary Anne Keyes, 
Extension; Erica Hoffman, GIS/IT; Barbara Woodbury, environmental health; Lani 
Hartung, finance; Raea Morris, administrative assistant; Ed Hillman, road; Paul Shea, 
museum; Jill Ouellette, HR; Shannan Piccolo, civil deputy county attorney; Kevin 
Larkin, treasurer; Clay Williams, weed; Martha Miller, auditor; and John Mueller, 
minutes clerk. 
 
Commissioner Durgan opened the floor to public comment.  None made. 
 
Support of Neighboring Counties: Commissioner Malone said Park County should assist 
neighboring counties needing help in an emergency, because Park County may call upon 
other counties at some point.  Human Resources Analyst Jill Ouellette said a neighboring 
county asked a Park County department for assistance and did not feel like it got a 
welcome enough response.  She said the idea is to remain neighborly.  Road Supervisor 
Ed Hillman said the Road Department has had good cooperation with neighboring 
counties.  
 
Timesheets for Approval from Commission: Ouellette said elected officials are not 
required to fill out timesheets per the county’s employee policy handbook, but the 
Commission is requesting department heads submit timesheets to the Commission’s 
administrative assistant in order for the Commission to review them.  
 
Roundtable Discussion of Activities: Department heads and elected officials reported on 
recent and ongoing activities and projects. 
 

Week of 8/15/11 Page 4 of 14 



Other Business/Comment: Ouellette said Park County received the highest score possible 
for a MACo JPIA risk management safety program, which equates to a five-percent 
discount on insurance for safety risk management.  Ouellette said MACo submitted a 
letter to the county with other safety areas MACo wants the county to tighten up in, 
including updating the employee policy handbook. 
 
Treasurer Kevin Larkin said some employees inquired whether outside curbs around the 
building will be cleaned up with trees having dead branches and dead weeds in tree beds.  
Larkin asked if the Commission Office door could be replaced with a door with a 
window so citizens can tell when the office is occupied or open.  He said some 
employees are questioning what hours county offices are supposed to be open per the 
employee handbook, as some offices do not remain open during those hours, or they 
close early.  
 
The next department head meeting is scheduled for September 20, 2011, at 9:30 a.m. 
 
@10:02:21 a.m., the meeting adjourned. 
 
August 16, 2011 
Human Resources Updates 
 
@1:04:14 p.m., Commissioner Durgan called a meeting to order in the Commissioners 
Chambers.  Durgan recessed the meeting until 1:30 p.m. when Commissioner Malone is 
present.  @1:31:28 p.m., the meeting reopened.  Commissioners Durgan and Malone 
were present.  Also present were Jill Ouellette, HR; and Minutes Clerk John Mueller.  No 
public comment made. 
 
The meeting was scheduled to discuss activities in the Human Resources Department. 
 
Human Resources Analyst Jill Ouellette read into the record a suggestion in the employee 
suggestion box about increasing hourly employee wages.   
 
Ouellette said she needs to meet with the Refuse Manager to select a Chico/Trail Creek 
green box site attendant.  Ouellette said she has received large requests from a 
department head who told her the Accounting Department can assist with the effort.  
Ouellette said she continues to have employees receiving incorrect promises about HR 
issues from the Accounting Department.  Ouellette said she is still conducting an 
investigation about a road grader damaged in a work-related accident.  
 
@1:51:05 p.m., Malone moved to adjourn the meeting.  Durgan seconded the motion.  
The meeting adjourned. 
 
 
 
 
 

Week of 8/15/11 Page 5 of 14 



August 16, 2011 
Discussion/Decision Regarding DES Quarter-Time Position for FY2012 
 
@2:02:49 p.m., Commissioner Durgan called a meeting to order in the Commissioners 
Chambers.  Commissioners Durgan and Malone were present.  Also present were Jill 
Ouellette, HR; Belinda Van Nurden and Greg Coleman, DES; and Minutes Clerk John 
Mueller.  No public comment made. 
 
The meeting was scheduled to consider a decision regarding a Disaster and Emergency 
Services (DES) quarter-time position for Fiscal Year 2012. 
 
Human Resources Analyst Jill Ouellette said DES Coordinator Belinda Van Nurden 
secured funds last fiscal year for a one-quarter time DES position and the Commission 
opted to have a short-term assignment to run through Fiscal Year 2011 that would use 
those funds.  Van Nurden said the funds have been expended, but more were received for 
the current fiscal year. 
 
Ouellette said MACo Attorney Jack Holstrom said he recommends the county go through 
a full job selection process noting the position is grant funded with fringe benefits.  
Ouellette said providing the position with those benefits may exhaust funds more quickly 
this fiscal year.  She said a job description will need to be generated for the position and 
the county will need to conduct a typical position vacancy announcement and hiring 
process. 
 
Commissioner Malone moved to sign the document to initiate the job posting process for 
a quarter-time DES position for Fiscal Year 2012.  Commissioner Durgan seconded the 
motion.  Motion passed. 
 
@2:11:43 p.m., the meeting adjourned. 
 
August 16, 2011 
 
3:00 P.M. – Web Committee – West Room 
 
6:30 P.M. – Fair Board Meeting – Fairgrounds Office – Commissioner Durgan attended 
  
August 17, 2011 
 
No Commissioner Meetings Scheduled 
  
2:30 P.M. – RC&D Meeting – West Room 
 
 
 
 
 

Week of 8/15/11 Page 6 of 14 



August 18, 2011 
Review Daily Agenda/Correspondence and Current County Projects 
 
@8:47:47 a.m., Commissioner Malone called a meeting to order in the Commissioners 
Chambers.  Malone recessed the meeting until 10:00 a.m. when Commissioner Durgan is 
present.  @10:07:49 a.m., the meeting reopened.  Commissioners Durgan and Malone 
were present.  Also present were Raea Morris, administrative assistant; Lani Hartung, 
finance; and Minutes Clerk John Mueller.  No public comment made. 
 
The meeting was scheduled to review the daily agenda and correspondence. 
 
Correspondence included: 
 

• Memo email re. City/County Airport project certification document 
• Memo email re. September 13 MACo Healthcare Trust special meeting 
• Memo document re. certificate liability insurance 
• Memo document re. citizen comment about dust and culvert issues on Jardine 

Road 
• Memo letter re. engineering bid RFQ award 
• Memo document re. citizen refuse request 
• Memo document re. Solid Waste Board minutes/agenda 
• Memo email re. KPRK Bridge project concerns 

 
Commissioner Malone reported on a site visit he took to Gardiner to discuss a proposed 
refuse compactor unit and CTA Engineering will provide the Commission with a cost 
estimate of the project.  
 
Malone said CTA will accompany a FEMA representative to view flood damage on Coal 
Camp Road this morning.  He said a damaged road grader has not been removed from a 
roadside and the insurance agency has not yet viewed the grader for damage assessment.  
He said a damaged dump truck box is at a repair shop.  
 
Commissioner Durgan reported on an August 18 RC&D Board of Directors meeting.  
 
Finance Director Lani Hartung presented the Commission with an invoice from the City 
of Livingston for $19,000 for culvert cleaning services for culverts within the city limits. 
 
Hartung said external auditors completed review of county finances ahead of schedule 
and she has moved up scheduling of approving the county budget as a result.  
 
@10:35:14 a.m., Durgan moved to adjourn the meeting.  Malone seconded the motion.  
The meeting adjourned. 
 
 
 
 

Week of 8/15/11 Page 7 of 14 



August 18, 2011 
Consider Decision of Solid Waste Update Committee on Zia Report Update 
 
@9:02:22 a.m., Commissioner Durgan called a meeting to order in the Commissioners 
Chambers.  Commissioners Durgan and Malone were present.  Also present were 
Shannan Piccolo, civil deputy county attorney; Courtney Lawellin, attorney; Citizens 
Dick Juhnke, Bob Currie, Jim Taylor and Jim Hunt; and Minutes Clerk John Mueller. 
 
The meeting was scheduled to consider a decision on a Solid Waste Update Committee 
recommendation for a Zia Report update. 
 
Civil Deputy County Attorney Shannan Piccolo said the county received an outline of 
solid waste study topics and the meeting was scheduled for the report update committee 
to review the outline and provide comments, which will be passed on to Bell and 
Associates.  Piccolo said Bell hopes to have a draft report out by the beginning of 
September, which will be submitted to committee members for review.  She said the 
county would like to hold a phone meeting with Bell a week after the report is reviewed 
in order for comments to be added into the report.   
 
Bob Currie said he fears the updated report will just be a resubmission of the original 
report, which is what the Concerned Citizens have been fighting against.  Currie said he 
added two points about incineration (Topics 4.4 and 5.0), as the Concerned Citizens 
requested the main focus of the report be on incineration.   
 
Jim Hunt said he finds it mystifying the outline has just been presented to committee 
members as is and questioned who created the outline.   
 
Concerned Citizens Attorney Courtney Lawellin said the committee was set up to assist 
Bell in addressing citizen concerns and meet the needs of the Commission in making a 
final decision on county refuse operations, but she is not sure that has happened.  Piccolo 
said her understanding is Bell is first creating a draft report and the committee’s ideas 
will then be added into the report.  She said it is not possible to know how much of a 
report will address any certain topic based on an outline of topics.  Hunt said the word 
“ongoing” should be deleted from Topic 1.2; 1.2.2. - Recent and Ongoing Legal Actions.  
 
Jim Taylor moved to accept the recommendation, especially Topics 4.4 and 5.0, and 
deletion of “ongoing.”  Dick Juhnke seconded the motion.  Motion passed.  
 
@9:51:44 a.m., Malone moved to adjourn the meeting.  Durgan seconded the motion.  
The meeting adjourned. 
 
August 18, 2011 
Signing of FAA Sponsor Certification Document for City/County Airport Project 
 
@1:02:00 p.m., Commissioner Malone called a meeting to order in the Commissioners 
Chambers.  Commissioners Durgan and Malone were present.  Also present were 

Week of 8/15/11 Page 8 of 14 



Shannan Piccolo, civil deputy county attorney; Kerry LaDuke and Jerri Miller, airport 
board; Lance Bowser, Robert Peccia and Associates; and Minutes Clerk John Mueller.  
No public comment made. 
 
The meeting was scheduled to sign a Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) sponsor 
certification document for a City/County Airport renovation project. 
 
Airport Board Chair Jerri Miller said the document in question will certify a residence 
exists on the airport property and another residence cannot be put on the property without 
prior FAA approval.  
 
Commissioner Durgan moved to sign off on the certification document for the 
City/County Airport Project.  Commissioner Malone seconded the motion.  Motion 
passed.  
 
@1:18:55 p.m. Durgan moved to adjourn the meeting.  Malone seconded the motion.  
The meeting adjourned. 
 
August 18, 2011 
 
1:30 P.M. – Planning and Development Board – Community Room – Meeting minutes 
available at www.parkcounty.org and in the Community Development Department 
 
4:00 P.M. – Library Board – Park County Library 
 
August 19, 2011 
Review Daily Agenda/Correspondence and Current County Projects 
 
@10:04:41 a.m., Commissioner Durgan called a meeting to order in the Commissioners 
Chambers.  Commissioners Durgan and Malone were present.  Also present were Raea 
Morris, administrative assistant; Lani Hartung, finance; and Minutes Clerk John Mueller.  
No public comment made. 
 
The meeting was scheduled to review the daily agenda and correspondence. 
 
Correspondence included: 
 

• Memo document re. MACo JPIA loss prevention credits 
• Memo document re. Joint Powers Insurance Authority loss control credit for 

$7,517 
• Memo document re. loss control credit for $8,836 
• Memo email re. economic development status report 
• Memo email re. MDOT high-wind interstate detour signs 
• Memo email re. RC&D director job description 
• Memo email re. Nov 7 Las Vegas road conference 
• Memo email re. Sept 8 economic development meeting in Bozeman 

Week of 8/15/11 Page 9 of 14 

http://www.parkcounty.org/


• Memo email re. Cooke City site visit   
• Memo email re. PCEC Fleshman Creek Project meeting 
• Memo email re. September Web Committee meeting notice 
• Memo email re. May 11 Public Information Request 
• Memo document re. Yellowstone View Condominiums Sheriff’s Office donation 

notice 
• Memo documents re. Fleshman Creek newspaper clippings 

 
Interim Fire Warden Greg Coleman reported on an August 15 visit to Cooke City to 
discuss fire issues and to discuss a FEMA assistance grant.  
 
@10:19:54 a.m., Malone moved to adjourn the meeting.  Durgan seconded the motion.  
The meeting adjourned. 
 
August 19, 2011 
Conference Call with FEMA for Discussion of Fleshman Creek Flood Mitigation and 
Restoration Project 
 
@10:31:30 a.m., Commissioner Malone called a meeting to order in the Commissioners 
Chambers.  Commissioners Durgan, Malone and Taylor (via telephone) were present.  
Also present via telephone were Kent Atwood, Paul Grimstad and Mike Stapp, Montana 
DES; Mike Hillenburg and Donna Boreck, FEMA.  Also present were Shannan Piccolo, 
civil deputy county attorney; Martha Miller, auditor; Barbara Woodbury, environmental 
health; Belinda Van Nurden, DES; Kim Knutson, fair; Scott Opitz, Montana FWP; Kerry 
Fee, Park County Environmental Council; Sharon Sweeney-Fee, Trout Unlimited; Kevin 
Fochs, Livingston School District; Wes Venteicher, Livingston Enterprise; Bruce Becker, 
City of Livingston; Peggy Glass, Dispatch 911; Citizens Al Agnew, Tom Coleman, Linda 
Ansotegui, Sue Nelson, Dan Nelson, Ed Flatt, Theresa Coleman and Kristen Wester; and 
Minutes Clerk John Mueller. 
 
The meeting was scheduled to hold a conference call with the Federal Emergency 
Management Agency (FEMA) for Discussion of the Fleshman Creek Flood Mitigation 
and Restoration Project.   
 
Commissioner Malone asked if Park County can pull out of the Fleshman Creek 
Mitigation Project if a preliminary engineering report shows the completion of the project 
will put an undue financial burden on Park County.  Commissioner Durgan said he has 
been pushing all along for a final design from an engineering firm to work out details of 
an engineering report and negotiate toward a final product.  Durgan said the project 
award letter states a request for changes in the project scope of work is permissible as 
long as changes do not change the nature or total project cost of the activity. 
 
Mike Hillenburg, FEMA Region VIII, said the intent of that statement is to enable a 
grantee to move forward in the process with minor adjustments that make sense and 
maintain the intention of the original grant.  Hillenburg said the idea is there will be some 
give and take and changes that will need to be adjusted and taken into account when an 

Week of 8/15/11 Page 10 of 14 



entity moves forward from a preliminary concept to a final design.  Kent Atwood, 
Montana DES, said such does not mean additional funds are available from FEMA for 
the Fleshman Creek project.  Hillenburg said Atwood’s statement is true and the grant is 
based upon what was proposed and awarded.  Atwood said the grant is a PDMC 2009 
application, and he awarded the funds to Park County the first week in August in 2008. 
 
Malone said his first question is at what point can Park County say the project will put an 
undue financial burden on the county and it should stop the project at that point or modify 
it if the final design from an engineering firm shows such.  Atwood said the state has 
been waiting for Park County to do that since he presented the county with the award.  
Atwood said the grant is still open, and the state is still waiting for Park County to 
commence the project with a final design and a preliminary engineering report, in any 
order, and request reimbursement from FEMA for 75 percent of those costs.   
 
Malone said his concern is whether Park County can pull out of the project or modify the 
scope if the preliminary engineering report shows the project costs $4 million for 
example and Park County cannot afford the million dollars.  Atwood said Page 6 of the 
FEMA award letter lists the Termination terms, which state “The Grantee, subgrantee, or 
FEMA may terminate grant award agreements by giving written notice to the other party 
at least seven (7) calendar days prior to the effective date of the termination.”  Atwood 
said the current termination date of the grant is July 31, 2013.   
 
Malone asked Civil Deputy County Attorney Shannan Piccolo if the language Atwood 
noted answers his question.  Piccolo said “yes” it does.   
 
Commissioner Durgan asked Malone how the Commission will determine what an undue 
hardship to the county is.  Malone said the three commissioners will determine that 
number.  Durgan said Malone’s response all along has been the project will cost the 
county $300,000, and he thinks the county has any number of areas to borrow and repay 
that money if necessary.   
 
Malone said if the county starts forward with the project and the three commissioners 
deem it a financial burden to Park County, the county can modify the scope of services.  
Donna Boreck of FEMA said there may be some modifications that need to be made due 
to the engineering, but a change to the scope of work cannot be addressed at this time.  
Hillenburg said the intent is to meet the benefit cost as originally proposed, and the 
grantee needs to continue to try to accomplish anything originally proposed.  He said it is 
allowable to modify the original scope in a minor way to improve costs.  He said it is also 
allowable for the project to cost a little more, but that burden would be on the subgrantee. 
 
Paul Grimstad, Montana DES, said there is no resolution written into the grant allowing 
for adjustments of the fact that costs may rise during the time the grant was awarded and 
the project is finished.   
 

Week of 8/15/11 Page 11 of 14 



Atwood said project matching funds from Park County are to come from labor and 
equipment operations rental from the county roads department.  He said there was no 
cash donation identified in the budget as submitted by Park County.  
 
Malone said the grant mentions a 2.7-mile stretch of Fleshman Creek and the application 
is for the two miles from the outfall into the lagoon.  Malone asked if FEMA considers 
Park County as having an obligation to do the rest of the stream not listed as part of the 
grant.  Atwood said he understands the project, as written and accepted, is an independent 
solution to the hazard and the seven-tenths of a mile is another issue not addressed at this 
time.   
 
Malone said his questions have been answered.  Commissioner Taylor said his questions 
have been answered.  
 
Kevin Fochs, Livingston Public Schools, asked about a project deadline as far as action 
on the grant until the grant is not awarded.  Atwood said the state would like to receive 
either intent or actual progress on the grant within 30 working days from today or it will 
probably consider withdrawing the grant and re-obligating the funds to FEMA.  Atwood 
said such would be done in writing and certified mail to the county in accordance with 
the award document.   
 
Piccolo asked if Park County signing the state/local disaster assistance agreement would 
suffice as intent by the county.  Atwood said “no,” as that document has been overdue by 
12 months also.  Atwood said progress would be for the county to go out for bids or 
conduct or receive some sort of final engineering or a preliminary engineering report 
associated with the project.  He said that would be significant progress to-date per 
Montana DES, which is way overdue.   
 
Sharon Sweeney-Fee, Trout Unlimited – Joe Brooks Chapter, said her understanding was 
going out for bids was approved last October by the Commission, and the only thing to 
decide was how to advertise for the RFQ.  Durgan said that was his impression also.   
 
Durgan asked Atwood if he received the county’s scope of work and a draft of the 
county’s RFQ.  Atwood said he has not received anything formally or in writing from 
Park County with the exception of the funding commitment letter on August 8 signed by 
all three commissioners and notification Philip Fletcher was the applicant agent.   
 
Durgan asked what applications or communication Atwood expects to see from the 
county if it goes forward with the project in the next 30 days.  Atwood said he needs a 
commissioner signature on and return of the state and local agreement that was signed by 
a DES head on August 2, 2010, and substantial proof that progress has been made in 
either bidding out or progress on or completion of a final engineering report or PER no 
later than the county’s September 30 quarterly report.   
 
Durgan asked what DES recommends the county should do should it experience 
reluctance from citizens to grant the county construction easements in order to do the 

Week of 8/15/11 Page 12 of 14 



project.  Atwood said without looking at specifics, Park County and the State must 
proceed in good faith as far as they can down the project line.  Durgan said it helps to 
know the county will do its part and expects the engineering firm to do its part to get 
easements.  Atwood said such is how the state understands it as well.   
 
Durgan said he feels the county has something it can work with now and the Commission 
can make a decision on the project.  He said he will instruct the Commission 
administrative assistant to call a meeting at the earliest possible convenience of the board 
to proceed with going out for a bid.  Taylor said to schedule the meeting when Durgan 
wishes and he will be in attendance via the telephone.  
 
Atwood said DES is standing by to assist Park County, would like to see Park County 
progress and it wants to help the county conduct the project.   
 
@10:54:33 a.m., Durgan moved to adjourn the meeting.  Malone seconded the motion.  
The meeting adjourned. 
 
August 19, 2011 
 
1:00 P.M. – Solid Waste Board – Commissioners Chambers – Commissioner Malone attended 
– Meeting minutes available at www.parkcounty.org and in the Commission Office 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Week of 8/15/11 Page 13 of 14 

http://www.parkcounty.org/


Week of 8/15/11 Page 14 of 14 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Randy Taylor, R.S. 
Chairman, Park County Commission  
Park County, Montana 
 
 
 
Denise Nelson 
Clerk & Recorder 
Park County, Montana 


